
 
1 5 0  W A K E F I E L D  S T .  S U I T E  1 2  

R O C H E S T E R ,  N H   0 3 8 6 7  

T E L E P H O N E :  9 9 4 - 3 5 0 0  

 

Central NH Regional 
Planning Commission 

28 Commercial St. Suite 3 
Concord, NH 03301 

Telephone: 226-6020 
 

Lakes Region 
Planning Commission 

103 Main St. Suite 3 
Meredith, NH  03253 
Telephone: 279-8171 

 
Nashua Regional  

Planning Commission 
30 Temple St. Suite 310 

Nashua, NH  03060 
Telephone: 417-6570 

 
North Country Council 

161 Main St.  
Littleton, NH  03561 
Telephone: 444-6303 

 
Rockingham 

Planning Commission 
156 Water Street 
Exeter, NH 03833 

Telephone: 778-0885 
 

Southern NH 
Planning Commission 

438 Dubuque Street 
Manchester, NH 03102 
Telephone: 669-4664 

 
Southwest Region 

 Planning Commission 
37 Ashuelot Street 
Keene, NH  03431 

Telephone: 357-0557 
 

Strafford Regional 
Planning Commission 

150 Wakefield St. Suite 12 
Rochester, NH  03867 
Telephone: 994-3500 

 
Upper Valley Lake 
Sunapee Regional 

Planning Commission 
10 Water St. Suite 225 
Lebanon, NH  03766 
Telephone: 448-1680 

NHARPC Meeting 

Wednesday, September 24, 2025 

1:00 PM to 3:00 PM 

Androscoggin Room 

NHMA 

25 Triangle Park Drive 

Concord, NH 03301 
 

Agenda 
 

1. Welcome and Introductions 1:00-1:05 

2. Action items 
a. Review and Approval of the June 25, 2025 

Minutes (enclosed) 
b. Sign Bank Signatory Paperwork (Peter, 

Bill, and Sarah) 

1:05-1:10 

3. Presentation: Bike Walk Alliance 1:10-1:40 

4. Legislative Updates  1:40-1:50 

5. Discussion Items 
a. Legislative Advocacy (breakfast, committee 

presentation, other) 

b. Ten Year Plan Hearings Coordination 
c. Marketing Plan 

1:50-2:30 

6. NHARPC - NHMA Partnership  
a. Town & City Articles and Webinars 

2:30-2:40 

7. RPC Updates 

a. Please plan to share current activities of 
interest from your region 

2:40-2:55 

8. Public Comment 2:55-3:00 

9. Adjourn 3:00 

 
Next Meeting 
Dec. 10, 2025, 1-3PM 



1 

 

New Hampshire Association of Regional Planning Commissions 

Annual Meeting Minutes 

June 25, 2025, 1:00-3:00 PM 

Bow Municipal Offices, 10 Grandview Road, Bow NH 

 

1) Welcome and Introductions 

Chair Jerry Coogan called the meeting to order and asked for introductions: 
 
Members present: Jen Czysz, SRPC; Michael Tardiff, CNHRPC; Sarah Wrightsman, 

SRPC; Jerry Coogan, UVLSRPC; Tim Moore, RPC; Peter Griffin, SNHPC; Sandy 

Crystal, CNHRPC; Shanna Saunders LRPC; Steve Buckley, CNHRPC; Sandy Crystal, 

CNHRPC; Tim Roach, RPC; Todd Horner, SWRPC; Christine Robidoux, SWRPC 

Members attending on Zoom: Meghan Butts, UVLSRPC;  Riley Stafford, CNHRPC 

2) Action items 

a. Review and Approval of the March 26, 2025  

T. Moore motioned to approve the March 26, 2025 minutes.  

Discussion: S. Buckley stated that on page 6, paragraph 5, the correct legislative 

number is SB-456 not 455. P. Griffin stated that his name was spelled incorrectly.  

S. Buckley seconded the motion to approve the minutes with amendments. 

Following a roll call vote with all members voting unanimously in favor, the motion 

passed. 

3) Minutes Legislative Updates  

Tim Moore presented his and Noah Hodgetts top ten list: 

1. HB224: Relative to rebates to ratepayers from the renewable energy fund. 

2. HB296 : Relative to issuing building permits along private roads.  

3. HB382: Prohibits municipalities from requiring more than 1 space per dwelling 

unit.  

4. HB399: Establishing a commission to study the New Hampshire zoning 

enabling act and relative to the effective date of the C-PACER program. 

 

Discussion: S. Saunders stated that the NH Planners Association (NHPA) reached 

out to the bill sponsors; there are no planners on the commission and NHPA was 

not included in discussions. NHPA is organizing to attend meetings and can provide 

feedback as more is learned. Typically, NHPA is invited to the hearings to participate 

and collaborate.  

 

 



2 

 

 

5. HB413: Relative to subdivision regulations on the completion of improvements 

and the regulation of building permits. 

6. HB457: Relative to zoning restrictions on dwelling units 

7. HB504: Relative to the state energy policy 

8. HB577: Relative to modifying the definition of ADUs 

9. HB631 Permitting residential building in commercial zoning. 

10.HB682: relative to the office of offshore wind industry, the offshore and port 

development commission, and the office of energy innovation. 

11.HB685: Permitting in all residentially zoned areas by right the construction 

of manufactured housing. Discussion: J. Czysz stated this is now dead 

12.HB690: Directing the department of energy to investigate the state's 

withdrawal from ISO-New England and other strategy decisions that impact 

ratepayers in relation to New England's environmental policy. 

13.SB78: Relative to the zoning board of adjustments appeal period. 

14. SB84: Relative to zoning procedures concerning residential housing. 

15.SB174: Prohibiting planning boards from considering the number of bedrooms 

a given unit or development has during the hearing and approval process. 

16. SB188: Relative to the state building code. 

 

Discussion: S. Saunders stated that the other thing that this bill does is make the 

timelines for municipal review of building permits and certificates of occupancy very 

short. That would put a burden on municipalities on their planning and building 

departments and boards. 

 

17. SB272: Relative to electric vehicle charging station funding. 

18. SB281 Prohibiting municipalities from denying building or occupancy permits 

for property adjacent to class VI roads under certain circumstances.  

 

Discussion: S. Buckly stated it does not prohibit a town from having a zoning 

ordinance that mandates frontage on a class V road, which would still require a 

variance from the ZBA. Anyone who wants to build on a class VI road and does not 

meet the frontage requirements may no longer have to get special permission from 

the select board, but they still have to get a variance from the ZBA. 

19. SB282 Relative to stairway requirements in certain residential buildings 

Discussion: A lot of urban areas only require one stairway. The state fire Marshall 

testified sprinkler systems are doing their job and mitigating risk. 

20. SB284: Relative to authority for municipalities to regulate mandatory on-

site parking requirements. 



3 

 

Discussion: S. Saunders explained that the New Hampshire Planners Association 

(NHPA) had offered to assist the drafters of the two bills in resolving technical 

issues. However, both NHPA and the New Hampshire Municipal Association (NHMA) 

were excluded from the process, which contributed to several technical problems. 

One notable issue is that some of the effective dates in the legislation do not align 

with town meeting schedules. As a result, many municipalities may find themselves 

without local regulations that comply with state law, placing them in a difficult 

position. These communities will likely require technical support from RPCs. 

Unfortunately, RPCs currently lack funding to provide this kind of technical 

assistance. J. Czysz stated that SRPC is working on a legislative toolkit. 

 

It was noted that the Governor might veto the proposed state budget, and a 

continuing resolution would take effect. If this were the case would a “default 

budget” include the target block grants? Could the Department of Business and 

Economic Affairs (BEA) speed up the contracting process, allowing funds to be 

spent in the first month? Concerns were raised about the likelihood of the 

Commissioner approving the processing of those contracts or invoices.  

 

Additionally, it was noted that in the House version of the budget, BEA lost both 

tourism funding and targeted block grant dollars. When Commissioner Caswell 

testified before the Senate, he advocated for the restoration of $4 million in tourism 

funding. 

  

4. Annual Business Meeting Items 

a. FY2025 Financial Report 

J. Czysz reported that the current checking account balance is $7,461. The financial 

reports were prepared one week prior to this meeting. Since then, two payments 

have been processed—one for staff administration and one for website 

maintenance—totaling $4,750. 

Invoices have been sent to the Regional Planning Commissions (RPCs) to cover 

convening expenses for a total of $971.18. 

S. Buckley motioned to accept the FY2025 financial reports as presented. T. Moore 

seconded the motion. All members voted unanimously in favor by roll call vote. The 

motion passed.  

b. Annual Dues Assessment ($1,000/RPC?) 

S. Buckley motioned to approve the proposed $1,000 annual dues assessment for 

each RPC $1000.00. P. Griffith seconded the motion. All members voted 

unanimously in favor by roll call vote. The motion passed.  



4 

 

c. Contracts for Services for FY2026 

• Administrative Support ($8,000) 

• Website/Communications ($1,500) 

J. Czysz stated the contracts are the same as FY25 with SRPC contracted for the 

administrative services for $8,000 annually and CNHRPC contracted for the website 

and social media services for $1,500 annually. 

S. Buckly motioned to award the Administrative and Website/Social Media Contracts 

for FY2026 as stated. P. Griffith seconded the motion. All members voted 

unanimously in favor by roll call vote. The motion passed.  

d. FY 2026 Budget 

J. Czysz stated the budget is the same as in the last few years: 

 

 

S. Buckly motioned to approve the proposed FY2026 budget as presented. S. 

Saunders seconded the motion. All members voted unanimously in favor by roll call 

vote. The motion passed.  

Discussion ensued about the $250 put aside for a legislative breakfast. S. Saunders 

stated the NHPA has partnered with NHARPC in the past on legislative breakfasts 

and the events were successful. Scheduling conflicts have been an issue. Staying 

within budget remains a consideration.  

Some representatives are interested in knowing who we are; we need to build 

relationships with legislators, so they understand our value to communities. S. 

NH Association of Regional Planning Commissions 

Proposed FY2026 Budget 

  
Income:   

   Membership Dues $9,000.00 

   Annual Convening RPC payments $1,250.00 

                                      Total  $10,250.00 

Expense:   

   Staff Support $8,000.00 

   Website/Communications Support $1,500.00 

   Conferences/Support of Affiliate Activities $500.00 

   Annual Convening $1,250.00 

   Legislative Breakfast $0.00 

   Incidental Expenses $250.00 

                                       Total  $11,500.00 

  
Check Register Balance as of 6/16/2025 $7,461.39 



5 

 

Buckly suggested engaging with Denis Parker, former RPC Director and former 

lobbyist, who has strong connections. A presence at the beginning of the legislative 

session in January would help to get our message out. S. Saunders stated that the 

NHPA has used lobbyists, but the costs have quadrupled; they are currently 

exploring alternatives due to limited options. 

The group was at a consensus to revisit the matter at the September meeting.  

e. Election of Officers 

S. Buckley presented the proposed slate of officers for FY 2026: 

Peter Griffin-Chair 

Bill Chaison-Vice Chair 

Katrin Kasper-Treasurer 

J. Czysz stated that Katrin Kasper is stepping down. SRPC commissioner Sarah 

Wrightsman, a new member to the NHARPC, accepted the nomination for the 

treasurer position.  

S. Buckly announced he will be stepping down from the CNHRPC as of June 30.  

S. Buckly motioned to nominate P. Griffin as Chair, Bill Chaison as Vice Chair, and 

Sarah Wrightsman as Treasurer. C. Robidoux seconded the motion. All members 

voted unanimously in favor by roll call vote. The motion passed.  

f. Re-cap of Commissioner Convening 

P Griffin stated he thought the Convening was a success and thanked the planning 

group and all involved for organizing. It was well organized, and the speakers were 

great.  

4) Priorities for FY 2026 

The group discussed priorities for fiscal year 2026: 

• Build relationships.  

• Show up as directors to the meetings. 

• Members update their commissioners on the Association on what we 

talked about and the legislative updates. 

• Presentations: 

o Present at conferences like NHMA, Primex, Housing, Field Events 

o Demonstrate a visual example of our projects and end product 

successes at conferences like the;  

o make the invisible visible.  



6 

 

o Partner with other organizations, to be more front and center in 

presentations and projects.  

o Each RPC present a year in review.  

o Submit 2 Town and City articles Resources for Volunteer Planners 

and How Investing in Regional Planning Gets Results to NHMA 

sessions. 

The group discussed breaking up the location for meetings and was in consensus to 

keep the meetings centrally located in Concord 

5) NHARPC - NHMA Partnership  

a. Town & City Articles and Webinars 

Investment and transit and mobility management is due July 25. Megan sends out 

reminders a month before and will start to send reminders a week before.  

J. Czysz stated that the RPC directors come up with a list and present it at the 

NHARPC meeting. 

 Suggestions for 2026 articles: 

• SRPC’s Housing and Habitats Webinar 

• Highlight work of RPC’s 

• Public engagement generally, surveys 

• Hazard Mitigation/current funding opportunities 

• Natural resources inventory/story maps 

• Household hazardous waste 

• Help communities to keep up to date on ordinances; wetlands 

• Transportation/ TAP grants 

• Follow up to a 10-year plan article from May/June; other grants available 

other than the Ten Year Plan 

• Other types of circuit riders like housing navigators, resilience 

coordinators. 

J. Czysz stated that she will present this list of ideas at the next RPC directors’ 

meeting and come back with a revised list at the September NHARPC meeting.  

6) RPC Updates 

M. Tardiff reported that CNRPC is receiving more requests for circuit riders. He is 

also seeing towns are having difficulty retaining recording secretaries. The group 

discussed how the pool of skilled and trained planners is thin; less are entering the 

field. Often Land Use Clerks make up for the lack of planners. Suggest we look into 

a shared pool of planners.  

 



7 

 

The committee thanked Jerry Coogan for his run as Chair. 

7) Public Comment 

There was no public comment 

8) Adjourn 

Following a motion and a second, all members voted in favor of adjourning. The 

meeting ended at 2:50PM.  



New York City - 2014
Default limit lowered from 30 to 25 MPH

 Queens Boulevard, which earlier had above-average
pedestrian fatalities, dropped to 3 years without a single
pedestrian or cyclist fatality after the speed limit change.

Boston - 2017
Default limit lowered from 30 t0 25 mph

Pedestrian & bike fatalities decreased from 15 in 2016 to 
7 in 2018, with 30% reduction in vehicles exceeding 35 mph.

Seattle - 2016
Default limit lowered from 25 to 20 mph 
on non arterial streets and from 30 to 25

mph on arterial streets

Fatalities decreased by 26 percent between 2017 and 2018.

 Madison, Wisconsin. - 2021
  Lowered neighborhood speed limit from

25 to 20 mph

Crashes reduced 41% from 3 year period before to 3 year
period after

Toronto - 2015–2016 
Default limit lowered from 25 to 19 mph

Declines in the rate of [pedestrian motor vehicles collisions]
on roads with posted speed limit reductions, but not

statistically different than reductions on comparator streets.

40 European cities
with city-wide 19 mph limits studied in 2024

Average reductions of 
23% in crashes, 37% in fatalities, and 38% in injuries.

BWANH’S GOAL:
Safer roads for all

BWANH’S GOAL:
Safer roads for all

A call for legislation to allow municipalities 
to control speeds 

SAFER STREETS AND ROADS
THROUGH LOCAL CONTROL 
OF SPEED LIMITS

Deaths and injuries to people on foot and on bikes are at epidemic levels, increasing at rates far faster 
than overall traffic fatalities. Pedestrian deaths rose a staggering 80% nationwide 2009-2023.

How to reduce speed of traffic 
– all three together are most effective

Road design: number and width of lanes,
parking, curves, roundabouts, raised
crosswalks, speed humps

Context: weather, congestion, roadside
features such as trees, open space

Speed limit

Lower speeds save lives
US DOT & NHTSA: Lowering speed limits to
20 mph, in areas with people on foot and on
bikes, reduces crashes and injuries.

Lower speeds = increased chance of surviving
a crash. The average risk of death for a
pedestrian reaches 10% at an impact speed of
23 mph, 25% at 32 mph, 50% at 42 mph.

FHWA: Lower speed limits alone reduce speeds, crashes, injuries

B I K E - W A L K  A L L I A N C E  O F  N E W  H A M P S H I R E Contact: Amanda Gourgue, Executive Director, BWANH at amanda@bwanh.org 

mailto:amanda@bwanh.org


According to the Federal Highway Administration
Speed control is one of the most important methods for
reducing fatalities and serious injuries" and "Appropriate
Speed Limits for All Road Users" is a "Proven Safety
Countermeasure" that can be used to support U.S.
Transportation Secretary Sean Duffy's SAFE ROADS initiative.

States that have already removed statutory limitations 
on local control of speed limits

Maryland: HB 0193 authorizes Anne Arundel County and municipalities
to decrease the speed limit to 15 miles per hour on highways after
performing an engineering and traffic investigation.

 
Virginia: HB 1071 allows the governing body of any county, city, or
town to reduce speed limits to less than 25 mph but not less than
15 mph, including state highways for which the existing posted speed
limit is 25 miles per hour.

New York: Passed in 2024, “Sammy’s Law” gives the City of New York
the authority to reduce speed limits to 20 mph on individual streets,
and to 10 mph on select streets undergoing safety-related redesigns. 

California: AB43, enacted in 2023 allows cities to reduce speed limits
on multiple streets by ordinance. On state highways, local agencies
can reduce speed limits to as low as 15 mph, after establishing the
85th percentile of driver speed through an Engineering and Traffic
Survey, but must round down rather than up, and may reduce by
another 5 mph.

Current statutory limits to municipal authority in NH
RSA 265:60 sets default speed limit to 30 mph in a business or urban
residence district.

RSA 265:63 
             - lets towns alter that speed limit, but no lower than 25 mph.
             - requires the town to do an engineering or traffic study first.

RSA 265:62 (since 2024) allows one annual seasonal reduction of a
speed limit to no less than 20 mph in areas seasonally congested, for
up to 4 months.

State law should not be an obstacle to safety

SAFER STREETS AND ROADS 
THROUGH LOCAL CONTROL OF SPEED LIMITS

B I K E - W A L K  A L L I A N C E  O F  N E W  H A M P S H I R E Contact: Amanda Gourgue, Executive Director, BWANH at amanda@bwanh.org 

BWANH Proposal: “Safer Streets” legislation allowing
municipalities to control speed limits

In NH RSA 265:63 
            - Lower the minimum speed limit for a business 
               or urban residence district from 25 mph to 20 mph or 
               outside an urban district.

This has ZERO cost to drivers. The impact on trip time 
       is negligible.

It merely allows localities, IF THEY CHOOSE, to lower their
speed limits on specific streets & roads to as low as 20 mph.

https://highways.dot.gov/safety/proven-safety-countermeasures/appropriate-speed-limits-all-road-users
https://highways.dot.gov/safety/proven-safety-countermeasures/appropriate-speed-limits-all-road-users
https://highways.dot.gov/safety/proven-safety-countermeasures/appropriate-speed-limits-all-road-users
https://highways.dot.gov/safety/proven-safety-countermeasures/appropriate-speed-limits-all-road-users
https://highways.dot.gov/safety/proven-safety-countermeasures
https://highways.dot.gov/safety/proven-safety-countermeasures
https://highways.dot.gov/safety/safe-roads
mailto:amanda@bwanh.org


NHARPC/NHMA 

Planning Education Partnership 

Schedule for Town & City Articles 
 

CY2025 List  

Issue Due Date Topic Authors 

Nov/Dec 

2024 
9/26/2024 

Housing Navigator 

Success Stories 

UVLS: Renee 

SRPC: Courtney 

Jan/Feb 11/29/2024 
Why Engagement is 
Important in the 
Planning Process 

NRPC - Jay 
NCC - Angie 
SNHPC - Suzanne 

Mar/Apr 1/31/2025 
How Investing in 
Regional Planning gets 

Results 

All 9 directors each do a 

paragraph example 
(Jen coordinate) 

Include James Steele 
from NCC 

May/Jun 3/28/2025 
Ten-Year Plan – variety 
of projects 

Each RPC write up and 

submit a project write 
up 

CNH – Mike 
SNH – Nate  

Jul/Aug 5/30/2025 
Brownfields and 
Affordable Housing 

LRPC: Shanna Saunders 
NCC: Michelle Moren-

Grey 
SNHPC: Cam Prolman 
(tbd) 

Sep/Oct 7/25/2025 

Investment in Transit 

and Mobility 
Management 

RPC – Scott Bogle lead 
UV - Tim 

SNH – Ben H 
NRPC - Jay 

CNH – Mike 

Nov/Dec 9/26/2025 
Resources for Volunteer 
Planners 

SWRPC – Todd 

SNHPC – Sylvia 
NCC - Courtney 

 

  


